
 

 

MEETING 
 

HEALTH OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

DATE AND TIME 
 

WEDNESDAY 6TH JULY, 2022 
 

AT 7.00 PM 

VENUE 
 

HENDON TOWN HALL, THE BURROUGHS, LONDON NW4 4BQ 

 
TO: MEMBERS OF HEALTH OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE (Quorum 3) 
 

Chair: Councillor Philip Cohen 
Vice Chair: Councillor Anne Hutton 
 
 

Zakia Zubairi 
Caroline Stock 
Matthew Perlberg 
 

Rishikesh Chakraborty 
Giulia Innocenti 
Shuey Gordon 
 

Alison Cornelius 
 

 
Substitute Members 
 

Sarah Wardle Ammar Naqvi Mark Shooter 
Liron Velleman Andreas Ioannidis Michael Mire 
 
In line with the Constitution’s Public Participation and Engagement Rules, requests to submit 
public questions or comments must be submitted by 10AM on the third working day before 
the date of the committee meeting. Therefore, the deadline for this meeting is Friday 1st July 
at 10AM. Requests must be submitted to tracy.scollin@barnet.gov.uk  Tel 020 8359 2315 
 
You are requested to attend the above meeting for which an agenda is attached. 

 

Andrew Charlwood – Head of Governance 

 
Governance Service contact: tracy.scollin@barnet.gov.uk  Tel 020 8359 2315 

 
Media Relations Contact: Tristan Garrick 020 8359 2454 Tristan.Garrick@Barnet.gov.uk 
 

ASSURANCE GROUP 
 

mailto:Tristan.Garrick@Barnet.gov.uk


 

 

ORDER OF BUSINESS 
 

Item No Title of Report Pages 

1.   Minutes  
 

To follow. 

 

2.   Absence of Members  
 

 

3.   Declaration of Members' Interests  
 

 

4.   Report of the Monitoring Officer  
 

 

5.   Public Question Time (If Any)  
 

 

6.   Members' Items (If Any)  
 

 

7.   Minutes of the North Central London Sector Joint Health Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee  
 

None. 

 

8.   Public Health Overview  
 

5 - 30 

9.   Future of Health Champions  
 

31 - 46 

10.   Integrated Care update  
 

Verbal update 

 

11.   Solutions4Health  
 

47 - 56 

12.   User Group - Mental Health Services  
 

 

13.   Health Overview and Scrutiny Forward Work Programme  
 

57 - 60 

14.   Any Other Items that the Chairman Decides are Urgent  
 

 

 
 

FACILITIES FOR PEOPLE WITH DISABILITIES 

Hendon Town Hall has access for wheelchair users including lifts and toilets.  If you wish to let 
us know in advance that you will be attending the meeting, please telephone 
tracy.scollin@barnet.gov.uk  Tel 020 8359 2315.  People with hearing difficulties who have a 
text phone, may telephone our minicom number on 020 8203 8942.  All of our Committee 
Rooms also have induction loops. 



 
 
     

 
 

FIRE/EMERGENCY EVACUATION PROCEDURE 

If the fire alarm sounds continuously, or if you are instructed to do so, you must leave the 
building by the nearest available exit.  You will be directed to the nearest exit by uniformed 
custodians.  It is vital you follow their instructions. 
 
You should proceed calmly; do not run and do not use the lifts. 
 
Do not stop to collect personal belongings 
 
Once you are outside, please do not wait immediately next to the building, but move some 
distance away and await further instructions. 
 
Do not re-enter the building until told to do so. 

 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

Health Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee 

 
6th July 2022  

Title  Public Health Overview 

Report of Joint Director of Public Health and Prevention 

Wards All 

Status Public 

Urgent No 

Key No 

Enclosures                          Appendix A – Public Health Overview 

Officer Contact Details  Tamara Djuretic, tamara.djuretic@barnet.gov.uk  

 

Summary 
This report provides the Committee with an overview of Public Health priorities, funding in 
2022/23, description of health inequalities and some examples of community engagement 
for health and wellbeing.   

 

Officers Recommendations  

1. That the Committee notes the report.  

1. Why this report is needed 

 Public Health is focussing on supporting people to stay well, helping to improve the 
health of the population through the prevention rather than treatment of disease.  

 Many of the factors which have an impact on a person’s health and wellbeing do not 
relate to accessing health services. Aspects of people’s lives, such as housing, 
education, environment and society can contribute to a person’s health and wellbeing, 
as much, if not more than access to traditional “health” services. This means that 
effective Public Health strategy and delivery needs to focus on the whole picture, and 
the whole system, ongoing engagement with residents and how it works to promote 
healthy behaviours. 

5

AGENDA ITEM 8

mailto:tamara.djuretic@barnet.gov.uk


Page 2 of 4 

 Poor health outcomes can have a number of impacts for the individual, the 
community and the economy. It can impact on the NHS (e.g. strain on hospital care, 
or medical treatment); social care (e.g. requirement for more intense forms of care); 
the economy (e.g. though sickness absence); and wider cost to the community (e.g. 
alcohol related crime and violence). 

 Public Health strategy and priorities in Barnet is guided by the Joint Health Needs 
Assessment (JSNA) and the Barnet Health and Wellbeing Strategy 2021 – 2025. 
Both are statutory partnership documents, and a range of actors are responsible for 
working together to deliver a range of improvements to population health.  

 Delivery of Public Health by Barnet Council is via a mix of statutory and non-statutory 
services. These are listed in the Appendix, along with examples of the work on 
tackling inequalities with a specific focus on community engagement.  

 The paper also describes Public Health approaches to community engagement and 
communications with residents aimed at improving overall health and wellbeing of the 
borough.   

2. Reasons for recommendations 

 This report provides an overview of current Public Health portfolio as an introductory 
context for the Committee. Therefore, no recommendations are required. 

3. Alternative options considered and not recommended 

 This report provides an overview of current Public Health portfolio as an introductory 
context for the Committee. Therefore, no recommendations are required. 

4. Post decision implementation 

 The Joint Health Needs Assessment will be refreshed during Summer 2022, with a 
focus on sub borough level analysis. This will be reviewed by the Barnet Health and 
Wellbeing Board at its meeting in September 2022, alongside the priorities and key 
areas of work for 2022/23. 

5. Implications of decision  

 Corporate Priorities and Performance 

Following the May 5th Elections, the council has a new Labour administration. On 
the 24th May 2022 Annual Council appointed a new Leader of the Council. The 
Leader and the new administration have set out the priorities including working in 
partnership with our local communities to help residents to lead healthier lives and 
tackling these health inequalities highlighted by the Covid-19 pandemic and to 
review Council strategies to ensure a clear link with public health outcomes. 

 Resources (Finance & Value for Money, Procurement, Staffing, IT, Property, 
Sustainability) 

6



Page 3 of 4 

5.2.1.1 The council’s Public Health delivery is funded predominantly by the ringfenced 
Public Health Grant, supplemented by some externally funded project funds. An 
outline of where the Public Health Grant is spent in Barnet is outlined in the 
Appendix. 

 Legal and Constitutional References 

The Terms of Reference of the HOSC as per the Barnet Constitution are: 

(1) To perform the overview and scrutiny role in relation to health issues which impact 
upon the residents of the London Borough of Barnet and the functions services and 
activities of the National Health Service and NHS bodies located within the London 
Borough of Barnet and in other areas.  

(2) To make reports and recommendations to Council, Health and Well Being Board, the 
Secretary of State for Health and/or other relevant authorities on health issues which 
affect or may affect the borough and its residents. 

(3) To recommend to Council entering into or appointing to joint overview and scrutiny 
committees that include the London Borough of Barnet and other boroughs for the 
purpose of responding to consultations by NHS bodies on proposals for substantial 
variation or development in the provision of health services as required by The Local 
Authority (Public Health and Wellbeing Boards and Health Scrutiny) Regulations 2013. 

 Insight 

Public Health priorities have been driven by the data analysis in the JSNA, and also 
project or priority specific analysis.  

 Social Value 

This is not applicable in this report.  

 Risk Management 

Risks around the delivery of Public Health priorities continue to be reported using the 
Council’s Risk Management Framework and system.  

 Equalities and Diversity  

5.7.1 Public Health focusses on a whole systems approach to prevention and health and care 
integration focuses on health disparities which persist amongst groups with protected 
characteristics. It is expected that a whole systems approach to prevention will prevent 
unintended harms against marginalised groups and promote health equity.  

5.7.2 On the Health and Wellbeing Strategy, as well as more detailed consultation on 
individual pieces of work, the Council consults and engages with appropriate 
communities and stakeholders to ensure that programmes are targeted appropriately, 
and address the needs of different communities. 

 Corporate Parenting 

5.8.1 Public Health works with Family Services and others to provide opportunities to support 

7



Page 4 of 4 

the council’s role as corporate parent through the health and wellbeing improvement 
interventions for children and young people residing in the borough, including children in 
care. 

 Consultation and Engagement 

5.9.1 Public Health delivery is driven by the priorities in the Health and Wellbeing Strategy, 
which was developed using a wide ranging consultation and engagement process with 
residents and partners. 

 Environmental Impact 

There are no direct environmental implications from noting the recommendations.  

6. Background papers 

 Barnet Joint Strategic Needs Assessment - Joint Strategic Needs Assessment – 
Barnet Open Data 

 Barnet Health and Wellbeing Strategy 2021 – 2025 - Barnet Joint Health and 
Wellbeing Strategy 2021 to 2025 - full document.pdf 

8

https://open.barnet.gov.uk/insight-and-intelligence/jsna/
https://open.barnet.gov.uk/insight-and-intelligence/jsna/
https://www.barnet.gov.uk/sites/default/files/2021-11/Barnet%20Joint%20Health%20and%20Wellbeing%20Strategy%202021%20to%202025%20-%20full%20document.pdf
https://www.barnet.gov.uk/sites/default/files/2021-11/Barnet%20Joint%20Health%20and%20Wellbeing%20Strategy%202021%20to%202025%20-%20full%20document.pdf


Public Health Overview
Health and Overview Scrutiny 

Committee
July 2022

9



What is Public Health?

• Public health is about helping people to stay healthy 
and protecting them from threats to their health;

• Sometimes public health activities involve helping 
individuals, at other times they involve dealing with 
wider factors that have an impact on the health of many 
people (for example an age-group, an ethnic group, a 
locality, or a country);

• While medicine and nursing are vital for helping and 
supporting people when they fall ill, work in public 
health contributes to reducing the causes of ill-health 
and improving people's health and wellbeing.

10



Public Health 
is more than 
just health… 

11



Statutory services
Sexual health services
National Child Measurement Programme (NCMP)
NHS health checks
0 – 19 Healthy Child Programme
Providing advice to the NHS
Health Protection 
Joint Strategic Needs Assessment Joint Strategic Needs Assessment – Barnet Open 
Data
Ensuring that PH Grant is spent to improve public health outcomes

Discretionary services
Drugs and alcohol services
Lifestyle and risky behaviour (healthy weight, smoking, physical exercise)
Health in All Policies and Healthy Places
Workplace Wellbeing 
https://employeeportal.lbbarnet.local/home/resources/Workplace-health-and-
wellbeing-hub.html

• Director of Public Health is Chief Officer with statutory responsibility to deliver Public Health Outcomes 
using ring-fenced public health grant

• Jointly appointed by LBB and Secretary of State, Regional Director of PH from Public Health England  
London. Regional Director of PH, Prof Kevin Fenton is Health Advisor to Mayor of London. 

Public Health Functions

12

https://open.barnet.gov.uk/insight-and-intelligence/jsna/
https://open.barnet.gov.uk/insight-and-intelligence/jsna/
https://employeeportal.lbbarnet.local/home/resources/Workplace-health-and-wellbeing-hub.html
https://employeeportal.lbbarnet.local/home/resources/Workplace-health-and-wellbeing-hub.html


Barnet Public Health Grant Spend 2022/23

RED – Statutory Services
BLUE – Areas linked to PH Outcomes Framework
YELLOW – PH Contribution to wider Council Prevention Agenda 

13



Total PH Grant per capita - London

London average is 
£74, with range from 
£40 to £154.
Barnet is third lowest 
at £43.

14



Total PH Grant per capita – England

England average is 
£58, while the 
London average is 
£74. The range in 
England is from £30 
to £154.
Barnet is lowest 
quintile nationally 
with app. £43 per 
head.

15



How healthy are we in Barnet?

16



Barnet’s population, on average, 
have good health and wellbeing  

• Life expectancy in Barnet is better than 
England’s and London’s average; 

• We have one of the lowest premature mortality 
due to cancers in the country;

• People live longer but later years in life are 
spent in poor health;

• Main causes of premature mortality are 
cardiovascular diseases, cancer and Alzheimer 
disease.

Joint Strategic Needs Assessment – Barnet Open Data

17

https://open.barnet.gov.uk/insight-and-intelligence/jsna/


However……men living in most 
deprived areas live, on average, 6.7 

years less than men in most affluent 
wards

Gap in life expectancy at birth in males is 
narrowing in Barnet (6.7 years)

Gap in life expectancy at birth in females 
remained similar (5.7 years)

18



82 
years

85.5 
years 

 Life expectancy is high in Barnet but people 
live late life in poor health ……due to long-
term conditions and mental ill health

Source: PHE 2018 Public Health Outcome Framework

Healthy life 
expectancy

62.9 – 
67.1

years
Average life 
expectancy

On average, people in 
Barnet live 18-19 years of 

their later life in poor 
health

19



What do we do and how we engage with 
communities to reduce inequalities? 

20



Vision and three key areas 

 

Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy 2021 to 2025 | Barnet Council

21

https://www.barnet.gov.uk/health-and-wellbeing/health-and-wellbeing-key-documents/joint-health-and-wellbeing-strategy-2021


Some recent initiatives

1422



Name Healthier
Catering 
Commitment

Refill Breastfeeding 
Welcome

Dementia 
Friendly Barnet

Community 
Toilet Scheme

Description Making changes to 
how food is prepared 
making it healthier. 
E.g. using a different 
cooking oil

Campaign to help 
prevent plastic 
pollution and reduce 
the use of single use 
plastic. Make 
drinking water 
accessible.

Providing mothers 
with a space to 
comfortably 
breastfeed in a 
public space 

Support people living 
with dementia to live 
well in their 
community and 
enable them to 
continue doing 
everyday things

A borough wide 
scheme to provide 
accessible, clean & 
safe toilets in 
convenient locations

Eligibility Food hygiene rating 
of 3 or above

Provide a water 
dispenser or tap that 
people/staff can use 

Friendly and 
welcoming attitude

Staff training & 
access to info to 
increase awareness 
& understanding of 
dementia 

Toilet facilities that 
can be accessed 
easily 

Evaluation Meet a minimum of 
eight criteria from a 
list of 25. Assess the 
current food options 
on offer.

Tap or water 
dispenser on offer 
must be clean, 
hygienic, stand-
alone. Not located in 
toilets or over open 
drain.

Clean, hygienic 
venue. Breastfeeding 
Welcome logo to be 
displayed in 
prominent location. 
Staff to read BW info. 
BW customers feel 
comfortable.

Dementia friendly 
language and 
environmental 
changes to business. 
Conduct building 
audit. Check staff 
fully trained and 
understand 
dementia. Display 
sticker.

Clean and hygienic 
facilities. Visitors can 
use without 
purchase. Display 
sticker to show 
participation in 
scheme.

Healthier High Streets
- the Five Schemes

23



Clean Air Day and Air Quality

• Barnet publicly marked Clear Air Day 
on 16 June

• Public Health is working with teams 
across the Council on ways of 
improving access to and promoting 
Active Travel, for example by walking, 
wheeling, cycling or scooting

24



Community Vaccine Champions Programme 
DLUHC funded Barnet £485,000 to address disparities in vaccine uptake. There are 5 distinct 
workstreams under this programme that target groups in the borough with the lowest vaccine 
uptake. 
Each workstream engages the public and local VCS organisations in the following ways:

Insight & 
Communications

Health 
Champions

VCS Grant Asylum 
Outreach 

Training

Insight gathering – 
interviewed 136 
people in target 
groups 

New Comms and 
Engagement 
Officers to work 
with VCS partners 

Co-Production of 
materials and 
assets with 
communities 

Increasing 
volunteer health 
champions across 
the borough

Recruiting paid 
health 
ambassadors in 
target groups 

2 rounds of a VCS 
grant Includes:

• Joint 
induction with 
VCS partner 

• Developing 
local VCS 
capacity 

Recruiting 1 x 
Asylum Outreach 
Officer to work 
with asylum 
seekers in 
contingency 
hotels 

Three-level 
training offer for all 
new staff – 
upskilling local VCS 
partners in Vaccine 
Hesitancy and 
MECC

25



Social Prescribing

Total number 
of referrals32242/3 referrals were 

female
increase in referrals 
this year

Highest rate of referrals in 
those aged 85 and over 

50%

Patients said their 
wellbeing improved

87%

12,424 Total number of 
appointments made

1. Social support (loneliness and 
isolation)

2. Carers support
3. Mental health support

Most common referral reasons in 
people 75+

Most common referral reason in 
young people aged 18-35

1. Mental health (depression and 
anxiety)

2. Housing, welfare, benefits and 
employment

60% Patients reported  
decreased  anxiety levels 

Started in December 2019. Service moved to Age UK Barnet in June 2020, 
and is delivered by 20 Link Workers via all Primary Care Networks

IN 2020/21:

26



Young Mental Health First Aiders

89 schools have at least one Youth Mental Health First Aider.

191 Trained Youth Mental Health First Aiders (school staff)
48 Peer Champions across 2 pilot schools (school pupils)

Further training  is scheduled. We aim to have 223 Youth 
Mental Health First Aiders  and 62 Peer Champions trained by 
July 2022. 

Delivered as part of the Barnet Resilient Schools Programme

27



We are developing a Public Health 
communications strategy 
Objectives
• Support the work of Barnet Public Health to improve health outcomes for residents by providing timely, accurate and 

relevant information that is accessible and understandable for the target audiences.

• Support the improvement of health outcomes across the borough by empowering people to make healthier choices

• Tackle health inequalities by providing relevant information to targeted audiences via community engagement.

Cardiovascular 
Disease Prevention

Public Mental 
Health

Healthy Start and 
Early Years

Healthier 
Environments

Health Protection

• Strategic campaigns – borough-wide, multi-channel, high level campaigns
• 4 quarterly campaigns addressing key identified priorities across the Public Health portfolio

• Community-specific campaigns – targeted, tailored approach
• particularly CVC project and partnership working to deliver targeted campaigns + engagement events

• ‘Always on’ / BAU communications
• Signposting to services / service updates, including refresh of microsite
• Supporting national awareness campaigns, incorporating localised messaging/signposting 

• All proactive and reactive communications will be insight-led and evidence-based

Output

Areas of focus

28



Strategic communications framework

Public 
Health 
comms

Actionable

Credible

Relevant

Timely

Understan
-dable

Accessible

Individual Barnet 
residents

VCSF partners & 
sector

Communities 
including Health 
Champions

Public Health 
professionals 

Internal: Barnet 
staff, Members & 
stakeholders

NHS / UKHSA

Evidence-based 
messaging

Data and research 
to inform comms 
methods/channels

Evaluation & 
uplift to ensure 
campaigns are 
resonating with 
target audiences

Digital vs print vs 
face to face
Community events
Case study led – 
human approach + 
facts/figures
Language & 
Literacy

NCL partners / 
London Councils

29



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

Health Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee 

 
Wednesday 6th July 2022 

Title  Health Champions Update  

Report of Director of Public Health and Prevention 

Wards All 

Status Public  

Urgent No 

Key No 

Enclosures                          Appendix 1 – Health Champions 2020-2022 Powerpoint  

Officer Contact Details  

Kerry Littleford, Public Health Specialty Registrar,  
kerry.littleford@barnet.gov.uk  
Dr Julie George, Deputy Director of Public Health, 
Julie.george@barnet.gov.uk  

 

Summary 
The Barnet Health Champions programme was developed by the Barnet Public Health 
Team from August 2020 and commissioned in November 2020 to support the COVID 
response locally and to address health inequalities in the context of COVID-19.  
 
We currently have 269 Health Champions across all 24 wards. Around 1 in 5 of our 
Champions are under 35 years old, with nearly 2 in 5 coming from Black, Asian or other 
Ethnic Minority backgrounds.  
 
Between November 2020 and April 2022, Public Health has kept Champions up to date 
about COVID-19 and the vaccination roll out, with support from NHS and other key 
partners.  Champions have been enabled to help their community make sense of the latest 
government guidelines and health information and help reduce the spread of COVID. The 
Health Champions have also fed back insight on local residents views and the situation in 
their areas as well as participated in developing campaign materials.  
 
Public Health recognised an opportunity to think differently about the programme with a 
future community needs in mind from Summer 2021 and plans were made to transition the 
champions from solely COVID-focussed to incorporate wider health priorities. These plans 
were delayed due to COVID transmission spikes in Autumn/Winter 2021, however, easing 
lockdown restrictions in early 2022 provided this opportunity as the borough recovered from 
the impacts of the pandemic. In February and March 2022 be began to safely divert our 

31

AGENDA ITEM 9

mailto:kerry.littleford@barnet.gov.uk
mailto:Julie.george@barnet.gov.uk


Page 2 of 5 

efforts to prevention opportunities and wider health concerns, whilst still retaining some 
capacity to work with Champions around COVID.  
 
We have now transitioned working with our Champions on a broader range of health topics 
including: 

 Mental Health  

 Cardiovascular Disease Prevention  

 Childhood Immunisations  

 COVID vaccinations  

 Living with COVID  

 
We have retained the majority of our Champions throughout this transition and have held 
introductory information evenings on each new topic to inform and engage them. Our 
Health Champions are particularly interested in Mental Health and are currently being 
trained in Make Every Contact Count (MECC).  
 
The Health Champions programme features within several local strategies including the 
Barnet Plan 2021-2025 and the Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy 2021-2025. The 
champions are also being incorporated into several Public Health programmes of work 
including Cardiovascular Disease Prevention, Mental Health and Childhood Immunisations.  
 
One of the objectives of the Barnet Plan is: 
 
“Supporting Barnet residents to be active participants in their communities and to be our 
partners in making Barnet a better place to live, work and study.” 
 

 

Officers Recommendations  

1. That the committee note and discuss the report.  

1. Why this report is needed 

 This report outlines the work to date for the Health Champions programme, including 
the more recent transition from focussing solely on COVID response to wider health 
issues, according to the priorities and needs of the borough.  

 Development of the COVID-19 Health Champions into a more general approach to 
Community Health Champions to support community participation in improving health is 
a priority for Barnet Council. Both Barnet Plan 2021-2025 (Healthy Theme) and the Joint 
Health and Wellbeing Strategy 2021-2025 include this programme as part of recovery 
plans. 

 In addition, deployment of Health Champions is one of the key strategies to support 
vaccine uptake nationally as suggested by Public Health England (now ‘Office of Health 
Improvement and Disparities’ and ‘UK Health Security Agency’) and NHS England. As 
such, the Health Champions are being incorporated into the Community Vaccine 
Champions programme – a programme funded by the Department of Levelling Up, 

32



Page 3 of 5 

Housing and Communities (DLUHC) specifically to increase COVID-vaccine uptake in 
groups where it is low. This funding is separate to Health Champions.  

 The main aim of the Health Champions programme is to improve health and wellbeing 
in the local communities and to address health inequalities through working with 
residents as Community Health Champions. We are able to achieve this by: 

a) Maintaining a mutually beneficial communication system in Barnet that enables 
people to help their family, friends and other community members to make sense 
of the latest facts about COVID-19, so that they can protect themselves but also 
let Barnet Council know about issues they face and questions they have about 
guidance or policy relating to COVID.  

b) Expanding the remit of the Champions to include broader health and social issues 
whilst maintaining the approach. 

c) Reaching individuals that are isolated or underserved groups to communicate 
important health messages and by ensuring that the characteristics of Champions 
reflect their local communities and groups.  

2. Reasons for recommendations 

 To ensure the committee is informed and supportive of our approach to the Health 
Champions programme including our transition to wider health issues.  

3. Alternative options considered and not recommended 

 None.  

4. Post decision implementation 

 Public Health will continue to run the Health Champions programme and transition the 
champions to wider health issues.  

5. Implications of decision  

 Corporate Priorities and Performance 

5.1.1 Following the May 5th Elections, the council has a new Labour administration. On the 
24th May 2022 Annual Council appointed a new Leader of the Council. The Leader 
and the new administration have set out the priorities including working in partnership 
with our local communities to help residents to lead healthier lives and tackling these 
health inequalities highlighted by the Covid-19 pandemic and to review Council 
strategies to ensure a clear link with public health outcomes. 

 Resources (Finance & Value for Money, Procurement, Staffing, IT, Property, 
Sustainability) 

5.2.1 The Health Champions programme has been funded from the COVID Contain funding, 
with some additional support from the DLUHC Covid Vaccine Champions funding and 
the public health grant. Future support for the programme will need to come 

33



Page 4 of 5 

exclusively from the public health grant.  

 Legal and Constitutional References 

5.3.1 Section 244 of the National Health Service Act 2006 and Local Authority (Public 
Health, Health and Wellbeing Boards and Health Scrutiny) Regulations 2013/218; Part 
4 Health Scrutiny by Local Authorities - provides for the establishment of Health 
Overview and Scrutiny Committees by local Authorities.  

5.3.2 The Council’s Constitution (Article 7) sets out the terms of reference of the Health 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee as having the following responsibilities: “To perform 
the overview and scrutiny role in relation to health issues which impact upon the 
residents of the London Borough of Barnet and the functions services and activities of 
the National Health Service (NHS) and NHS bodies located within the London 
Borough of Barnet and in other areas.” 

 Insight 

5.4.1 The wider health issues are priority issues for Barnet taken from the Joint Strategic 
Needs Assessment and inequalities priorities within it.  

5.4.2 Wards and communities are also being targeted for COVID-vaccine uptake where data 
shows it is low. 

 Social Value 

5.5.1 This service has been commissioned from one of our voluntary sector organisations 
which also forms one of the key partners of the Barnet Together Alliance.  

 Risk Management 

5.6.1 The success of the transition of the Health Champions programme to wider health 
topics relies on the engagement of the Health Champions in non-COVID related topics 
outside of a national crisis. Lack of support from our Champions could lead to missed 
opportunities to undertake prevention work and address health inequalities.  

5.6.2 The following controls and mitigations are in place: 

5.6.2.1 Co-production of wider health priority areas with Health Champions 

5.6.2.2 Introduction sessions for each new topic with experts 

5.6.2.3 Regular check-ins with Health Champions to gauge interest in wider health topics  

5.6.2.4 Training and upskilling in new topic areas  

 Equalities and Diversity  

5.7.1 The provider of our Health Champions programme (Groundwork) continuously monitors 
and reviews the demographics of its champions to ensure they align with local 
demographics. Our champions come from all 24 wards with a minimum of 5 champions 
per ward.  

5.7.2 Around 1 in 5 of our champions are under 35 years old, with just under 2 in 5 champions 
from Black, Asian and other Ethnic Minority backgrounds. Our gender split is 70% female 

34



Page 5 of 5 

and 30% male, in line with typical gender splits we see in other volunteer groups within 
the local population. These splits are likely to be different where inequalities exist.   

 Corporate Parenting 

5.8.1 It is intended that the Health Champions programme improves the health and 
wellbeing of all Barnet residents including children and young people in care. 

 Consultation and Engagement 

5.9.1 The Health Champions programme regularly consults with its members to develop the 
work programme. Focus groups have been undertaken with sub-groups of our 
champions on a variety of topics including with young people on vaccinations.  

5.9.2 There are three levels of engagement within the programme, as described below: 

5.9.2.1 Engaged: Not attended an information session but receiving the infographics and 
emails (127 champions). 

5.9.2.2 Highly Engaged: Attended 1-15 information sessions (107 champions). 

5.9.2.3 Super Engaged: Attended 15+ information sessions (31 champions). 

 Environmental Impact 

5.10.1 There are no direct environmental implications from noting the report.  

6. Background papers 

 Appendix 1 - Health Champions 2020-2022 Update, Health Overview Scrutiny 
Committee, 6th July 2022 [PPT].  

35



This page is intentionally left blank



Health Champions 2020-
2022

Update for Health Overview & Scrutiny 
Committee

06.07.22

Kerry Littleford – Public Health Specialty Registrar

37



The Journey 
August 2020: Health 
Champions 
programme start to 
be developed

Champions start as 
COVID champions

2nd 
National 

Lockdown

38



The Journey
Agreement to 

move 
champions to 
wider health 

issues  

Most legal 
limits on 

social 
contact 

removed

Vaccine 
rollout in 

UK!

39



CVC Bid 
Successful and 

built into 
champions 

work 
programme 

Five health 
priorities 

presented to 
champions 

Primary 
school 

children 
offered 
vaccine

Submit bid 
for 

Community 
Vaccine 

Champions 
(CVC) 

Programme

Omicron Spike 
– move to Plan 

B

DEC 21 JAN 22 FEB 22 MAR 22 APR 22

Free testing 
comes to an 

end

Survey 
launched to all 
champions – 
44 respond 

Day of 
Reflection: 
DPH sends 
thank you 

message to 
champions

Champions 
session on 

Mental Health 
including 

suicide 
prevention 
and Andy’s 
Man Club

Champions 
session on 
Childhood 

Immunisations

UK moves back 
to Plan A – face 
coverings and 
covid passes 

not mandatory

The Journey

MAY 22 JUN 22

40



Current Picture 

41



Partners worked with

42



Infographics

43



8

44



The Future
LIVING 

WITH COVID
COVID 

VACCINATIONS
MENTAL 
HEALTH

CARDIOVASCULAR 
DISEASE 

PREVENTION

CHILDHOOD 
IMMUNISATIONS

45



Quotes from champions 

“I feel privileged that I can help 
people get accurate information” 

“I most enjoy the sense of having 
made a contribution towards the 
fight against the pandemic” 

46



 

 

Summary 

Public Health and Family Services commissions the Healthy Child Programme services 

(Health visiting, school nursing, oral health promotion, healthy weight nurses and 

breastfeeding peer support service) and they are delivered by Solutions 4 Health from 1 

April 2022 for the next 3 years.   

 

The Healthy Child Programme (HCP, 2009) 0 – 5 and 5 – 19 is the early intervention and 

prevention public health programme that lies at the heart of our universal service for 

children and families at a crucial stage of life. The HCP’s universal reach provides an 

invaluable opportunity to identify families that are in need of additional support and children 

who are at risk of poor outcomes. 

 

The HCP offers every family a programme of screening tests, immunisations, 

developmental reviews, and information and guidance to support parenting and healthy 

choices – all services that children and families need to receive if they are to achieve their 

optimum health and wellbeing. Effective implementation of the HCP should lead to:  

• Strong parent–child attachment and positive parenting, resulting in better social and 

emotional wellbeing among children;  

 

Barnet Health Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee 

 
6 July 2022 

 

Title  Healthy Child Programme by Solutions 4 Health  

Report of Director of Public Health and Prevention   

Wards All 

Status Public  

Key No  

Urgent No 

Enclosures                          None 

Officer Contact Details  
Clare Slater-Robins clare.slater-robins@barnet.gov.uk  
Emma Waters emma.waters@barnet.gov.uk  
 

47

AGENDA ITEM 11

mailto:clare.slater-robins@barnet.gov.uk
mailto:emma.waters@barnet.gov.uk


• Care that helps to keep children healthy and safe;  

• Healthy eating and increased activity, leading to a reduction in obesity; 

• Prevention of some serious and communicable diseases;  

• Increased rates of initiation and continuation of breastfeeding;  

• Readiness for school and improved learning;  

• Early recognition of growth disorders and risk factors for obesity; 

• Early detection of – and action to address – developmental delay, abnormalities and 

ill health, and concerns about safety;  

• Identification of factors that could influence health and wellbeing in families; and  

• Better short- and long-term outcomes for children who are at risk of social exclusion. 

 

Health visitors and school nurses as leaders and key deliverers of the HCP have a 

fundamental role to play in establishing good working relationships with all local key 

partners. Aligning with wider prevention and community based programmes and services 

e.g. health promotion, contraception, sexual health, reducing obesity, smoking cessation 

and breastfeeding provides a whole system approach to prevention and supports the 

provision of early universal access to information for health issues.   

 
 

Recommendations  
1. That the Committee note the report and update regarding the Healthy Child 

Programme in Barnet.  
  

2. That the committee hear from Solutions4Health about the organisation, their 
progress so far, the opportunities and challenges. 
 

 
1. WHY THIS REPORT IS NEEDED  

 
Following the successful procurement process the contract was awarded by 

Barnet Council to a public health CQC registered provider, Solutions4Health. 

There was a long transition period so little disruption was experienced by the 

residents in Barnet and the services became live with S4H on 1 April 2022. 

 

Since the 1 April the new provider has been settling staff into the organisation 

and recruiting to the vacancies in the services, predominantly health visiting, 

oral health and school nursing. This is against a backdrop of national shortages 

of health visitors and school nurses.  

 

2. REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS  
 

2.1 The report provides the Committee with the opportunity to be briefed on this 

matter.  They are empowered to make further recommendations should they 

wish.   

 

48



3. ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND NOT RECOMMENDED 
 

3.1 Not applicable. 
 

4. POST DECISION IMPLEMENTATION 
 

4.1 The Healthy Child Programme Board, Contract and Strategic Update meeting 
will continue to monitor progress in Barnet.   
 

5. IMPLICATIONS OF DECISION  
 

5.1 Corporate Priorities and Performance 
 

5.1.1 Following the May 5th Elections, the council has a new Labour 

administration. On the 24th May 2022 Annual Council appointed a new 

Leader of the Council. The Leader and the new administration have set out 

the priorities including working in partnership with our local communities to 

help residents to lead healthier lives and tackling these health inequalities 

highlighted by the Covid-19 pandemic and to review Council strategies to 

ensure a clear link with public health outcomes. 

 

5.2 Resources (Finance & Value for Money, Procurement, Staffing, IT, 
Property, Sustainability) 
 

5.2.1 The Healthy Child Programme is a mandatory service funded via the Public 

Health grant and there are no other financial implications for the Council. 

 
5.3 Social Value  

 

5.3.1 The Public Services (Social Value) Act 2012 requires people who 

commission certain public services to think about how they can also 

secure wider social, economic and environmental benefits. 

5.3.2 The Healthy Child Programme ensures an efficient health and 

wellbeing service for children and families whilst delivering benefits to 

individuals in a coordinated fashion. The programme also includes 

supporting parents and young people when they need it and providing 

the right amount of advice to individuals to develop the skills they need to 

make choices for their own well-being in the future. Services working 

together derive social capital from each other and this in turn supports a 

collaborative approach towards sustainability within an ever-changing 

economy. 

 
5.4 Legal and Constitutional References 

 
5.4.1 Section 244 of the National Health Service Act 2006 and Local Authority (Public 

Health, Health and Wellbeing Boards and Health Scrutiny) Regulations 

2013/218; Part 4 Health Scrutiny by Local Authorities provides for the 

49



establishment of Health Overview and Scrutiny Committees by local authorities. 

 

5.4.2 The Council’s Constitution (Article 7) sets out the terms of reference of the 

Health Overview and Scrutiny Committee as having the following 

responsibilities:  

 

“To perform the overview and scrutiny role in relation to health issues which 
impact upon the residents of the London Borough of Barnet and the functions 
services and activities of the National Health Service (NHS) and NHS bodies 
located within the London Borough of Barnet and in other areas.” 
 

5.5 Risk Management 
 

5.5.1 The Mobilisation project plan had a comprehensive risk register which was 

monitored at the Healthy Child Programme board on a monthly basis and 

mitigation actions discussed. 

5.5.2 Solutions4Health have a Barnet specific risk register which includes staffing 

and recruitment, Blood Spot sustainability and New Birth visits. 

 

5.6 Equalities and Diversity  
 

5.6.1 Equality and Diversity issues are a mandatory consideration in decision making 

in the Council pursuant to the Equality Act 2010. This means the Council and 

all other organisations acting on its behalf must fulfil its equality duty when 

exercising a public function. The broad purpose of this duty is to integrate 

considerations of equality and good relations into day to day business, requiring 

equality considerations to be reflected into the design of policies and the 

delivery of services and for these to be kept under review. 

 

5.6.2 The specific duty set out in s149 of the Equality Act is to have due regard to 
need to: 
 

Eliminate discrimination, harassment, victimisation and any other conduct 
that is prohibited by or under this Act; Advance equality of opportunity 
between persons who share a relevant protected characteristic and persons 
who do not share it; Foster good relations between persons who share a 
relevant protected characteristic and persons who do not share it. 
 

5.6.3 The relevant protected characteristics are – age; disability; gender 

reassignment; pregnancy and maternity; race; religion or belief; sex; sexual 

orientation. Health partners as relevant public bodies must similarly discharge 

their duties under the Equality Act 2010 and consideration of equalities issues 

should therefore form part of their reports. 

 
5.7 Consultation and Engagement 

 
5.7.1 A commissioner led service user and stakeholder feedback exercise 

50



closed in July 2021 and while its responses did not inform the 

reprocurement exercise they are part of the mobilisation phase and are 

helping to determine any amendments to the service delivery ‘To be’ model 

going forward. 

5.7.2 Solutions4Health commissioned an external consultant to conduct a 

review of the ‘As is’ model of service delivery which is now in the 

dissemination phase and is informing, along with the service user and 

stakeholder feedback, the new ‘To be’ model to deliver the Barnet service 

specification.   

 
5.8 Corporate Parenting: 
 

5.8.1 There are no implications for the London Borough of Barnet’s corporate  

parenting responsibilities with this contract.  

 

5.8.2 The health visiting and school nursing services have safeguarding 

responsibilities as part of their overall health and development surveillance 

supporting children who have been placed in care with their health needs. 

 

6. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
None. 

 

 

51



This page is intentionally left blank



 

Report for Barnet Health Overview Scrutiny Committee  

 

Report for Barnet Health Overview Scrutiny Committee 
       6 July 2022 

Introduction 

On 1st April 2022, Solutions 4 Health took over the provision of the Healthy Child Programme (HCP) 

in Barnet. This report outlines the progress that has been made since the transition, the vision for 

the service, challenges to date, areas of risk and mitigation. 

Solutions 4 Health is a public health CQC registered provider with a strong reputation in the 

successful delivery of NHS clinical and public health services and tackling health inequalities. The 

organisation delivers a range of services nationally. These include Public Health Nursing 4 Slough 0-

19 (25) service, sexual health services, domestic abuse support service, ADHD and autism support 

services, smoking cessation, healthy lifestyle, Artificial Intelligence (AI) Applications to support 

practice and others. 

The Public Health Nursing 4 Slough 0-19 (25) Integrated Health Visiting and School Nursing Services 

was inspected by the Care Quality Commission (CQC) in February 2022 and was rated ‘good’ on 4 of 

the 5 Standards and ‘outstanding’ in another. 

The CQC found outstanding practice in relation to the service’s creativity and innovative approach to 

meeting the needs of the local population and how the service responded during the pandemic to 

ensure a safe and effective service.  

The service had developed several AI Applications (App) for service users to use at various points 

throughout their care. This included the ‘Ask Teddi’ App, so that parents and carers can access 

advice on parenting issues such as sleep, weaning and potty training. In addition, an interactive App 

with games aimed at 5- to 11-year-olds to promote healthy choices, and an App for 11- to 17-year-

olds to support healthy and positive lifestyles. 

Transition 

The organisation took over the transition of The Healthy Child Programme on 1 April 2022 following 

a period of preparation which included extensive engagement with staff, service users, 

commissioners and stakeholders. The engagement process is ongoing as Solutions 4 Health seek to 

engage stakeholders and service users in working collaboratively during the transformation. There 

was a seamless transfer of services, ensuring minimal disruption to service users, staff and 

stakeholders. 

The commissioned services are, Health Visiting, School Nursing, Oral Health Promotion, Infant 

Feeding Support, and the National Childhood Measurement Programme. 

Achievements 

During the first three months the following were achieved: 

 Established relationships with tuped staff and new staff joining the team 

 Staff across all localities are now working from the same office base. This approach supports: 

o Collaborative working across the various teams within the service 

o Access to all staff for training, staff meetings and building team dynamics 

o Appraising the competencies of staff and development of skills 

o Continuous access to the management team and safeguarding specialists. 

 Induction of all staff which included training and the distribution of IT equipment, ensuring 

that staff have the necessary equipment and skills to undertake their roles 

53



 

Report for Barnet Health Overview Scrutiny Committee  

 

 Service users and stakeholders continue to have access to the service eg clinics, home visits, 

advice and support 

 The service is being delivered from Children Centres across the three localities 

 There has been a gradual shift from virtual to face to face-to-face contacts with children and 

families 

 Continued engagement and opportunities for collaborative working with stakeholders 

Transformation 

A review of the Healthy Child Programme was commissioned by Solutions for Health prior to going 

live. The review explored the  HCP service provision (until 31st March 2022). The aim was to develop 

an understanding of service provision (‘As Is’ Model) by undertaking interviews with stakeholders, 

scrutiny of key documents and user satisfaction surveys. 

A report has been written and key themes and findings from the report has informed an 

Implementation Plan which is the framework for the transformation of services (the ‘To Be’ Model). 

There is ongoing work with the Solutions 4 Health Communications and Marketing team who are 

working to develop a communication strategy for the service. 

Service Vision 

S4H aims to: 

 Deliver a service which is safe, effective, caring, responsive and well led 

 To be innovative in finding solutions to meet the needs of the hard to reach and vulnerable 
children and families in Barnet. 

 To have an integrated Health Visiting and School Nursing public health service for children 
and young people 0-19 and up to 25 for children with SEND 

 Have an emphasis on Early Help and health promotion 

 Strengthen the links between School Nursing and Health Visiting 

 Be focused on outcomes. 

 Be family centred based on the views of children, families, staff and partner organisations.  

 Support school-aged children in transition, including between health visiting and school 
nursing, and into adult services 

 Have a SEND Lead who will coordinate and work with GPs, Children Centres, Maternity 
Units, Child Development services, SALT, parents and schools to ensure that the health 
needs of children are met 

 Have a Safeguarding team with robust policies and processes to effectively safeguard 
children. 

 Allocate each school with a named school nurse 

 Have termly meetings with the Designated Leads for Schools 

 Have drop ins for young people  

 Target children not in school or education and those that are being home schooled. 

 Have a named health professional for each GP practice 

 
Challenges and Risks 

1. Recruitment and Retention of Staff 

Solutions 4 Health has had success in recruiting several new staff to the service and have 

continued the recruitment process. In addition to tuped staff, thirty-three (33) additional 

staff of various disciplines have been recruited. There is a national shortage of Health 

54



 

Report for Barnet Health Overview Scrutiny Committee  

 

Visitors and School Nurses, therefore consideration must be given to developing the skills of 

skill mix staff and to implement innovative ways of working.  

Change Management 

Solutions 4 Health has commissioned a change management consultant who is currently 

working with staff to support them through the change process and embracing new ways of 

working within a new organisation. 

Contact details: 
Healthy Child Programme 4 Barnet 
Tel: 0800 772 3110/0203 633 4049 
Email: hcp.4barnet@nhs.net 
Web: www.healthychildprogramme4barnet.co.uk 

55

mailto:hcp.4barnet@nhs.net
http://www.healthychildprogramme4barnet.co.uk/


This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Health Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee 

Draft Forward Plan 2022-23 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Governance Services Contact: tracy.scollin@barnet.gov.uk 

57

A
G

E
N

D
A

 IT
E

M
 13



 

 
Title of Report 

 
Overview of decision 

 
Report Of (officer) 

19 October 2022 

Winter Preparedness in North Central London 
including preparation for ‘flu season and 
Covid-19  

Annual Update North Central London Clinical 
Commissioning Group (NCL CCG) 

NHS North Central London Integrated Care 
Board 

New work programme and implications of new structure  Executive Director, Adults and 
Health/NCL CCG 

User groups Topic TBC TBC 

8th December 2022 

Mid Year NHS Trust Quality Accounts Progress Report  NHS Trusts 

User groups Topic TBC TBC 

27th February 2022 

User groups Topic TBC TBC 

To be allocated 

Children and Young People’s Oral Health in 
Barnet 

Update including Barnet Young Brushers Supervised 
Toothbrushing pilot Project 

 

Director of Public Health  

NCL Healthwatch Long Covid update  NCL Healthwatch  58



Barnet Healthwatch Annual Report  Barnet Healthwatch  

 
NCL ICS update on Transformation Programmes  

 
Topics TBC 

Executive Director, Adults and 
Health/NCL CCG 

 

 
Suicide Prevention Strategy 

 
Annual Update  

Director of Public Health  

 
 

59



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	8 Public Health Overview
	27-06-22 - PH Overview Presentation - HOSC - JR slides

	9 Future of Health Champions
	Health Champions Update - HOSC 06.07.22 FINAL DRAFT_

	11 Solutions4Health
	Report for the Health Overview Scrutiny Committee 6 July 2022 FINAL 0.2 (002)

	13 Health Overview and Scrutiny Forward Work Programme

